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We are moving onward
from strength to strength towards 

new milestones and greater achievements.
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Vision
To be the bank of choice for 
the business community, 
delivering total banking 
experience characterized 
by friendly and outstanding 
service with the desire to 
provide a better quality of 
life for all.

Service Promise
With integrity and financial stability, we 
commit to deliver superior service to 
you, our discerning customers. Through 
competent and warm professionals 
who understand, anticipate, and fulfill 
your needs with a sense of urgency in 
a safe and guest-friendly environment, 
we promise you a meaningful banking 
experience. 

Mission
Our business is professional banking. 
We commit to serve our clients with 
the highest standards of integrity 
and quality. We strongly believe in 
our human resources and dedicate 
ourselves to their continuous 
development. We will create value for 
our stakeholders by being among the 
top banks in the industry. In so doing, 
we contribute to nation building.

We are Bank of Commerce.
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The past year was a turning point for the global 
banking industry, as many banks focused on 
protecting their bottom lines from the effects of 
thinning intermediation spreads, erratic market 
prices of securities and sovereigns, and unavoidable 
impairment loss charges. Furthermore, many 
financial institutions found themselves in the 
position of changing market and financial strategies, 
having to adjust pricing, and having to contend 
with lower trading gains and non-interest revenues 
during the year. Although global economists have 
predicted that the worst of the financial crises is 
behind us, institutions are finding that full recovery 
can be slow and painful. Philippine banks have 
remained resilient and continue to adapt to the 

changing economic environment, reporting 
double digit returns for 2014.  

The Philippines registered growth at 6.1% 
last year.  This may not have reached its 

GDP targets of 6.5% to 7.5%, mainly 
due to government underspending 

and the ailing farm sector, but the 
country registered the strongest 

performance in the Southeast 
Asian region and second only to 
China among Asian markets. 
We are confident in the 
knowledge that we are merely 

biding our time as we lay a 
stronger, more stable foundation 

upon which to take advantage of 
the promised upturn in 2015. 

Although government GDP growth targets for 
2015 of between 7% and 8% are higher than 
forecasts of the IMF,  World Bank and credit rating 

agencies, it will be a noteworthy achievement as 
the country is  expected to outpace our ASEAN 
neighbors.
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Due to the keen inflation targeting by Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP), the Philippine peso 
remains a strong currency and the local market 
is shielded from any ill effects of uncontrolled 
inflation. Local banks are experiencing strong 
growth. The BSP maintains that Philippine banks 
are adequately capitalized to take external shocks.

The Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) has also 
continued to perform well and broke records 
throughout the year despite periodic dips, 
indicating that all sectors on the broad index still 
manage to attract investors. 

Additional good news came from the 
unprecedented improvement of investment grade 
ratings from top credit rating agencies such as 
Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch Ratings. 
First-ever ratings from Japan Credit Rating Agency 
(JCR), Rating & Investments, Inc. (R&I) and Korean-
based National Information and Credit (NICE) only 
confirmed, that the Philippine economy is moving 
on the right track towards growth. The collective 
approval of these credit rating agencies on our 
country’s fiscal policies and good governance only 
bodes very well for Philippine banks. 

We, at Bank of Commerce, have experienced a 
fruitful year because of the diligent work of the men 
and women behind each and every department. We 
believe that through the continued internal growth 
and improvement, we are building a sustainable 
and formidable business model that can keep up 
with the changing times. We will weather whatever 
financial storms may come as a result of the ever-
changing business environment.

We remain stalwart and steady, as we owe it to 
our stakeholders – directors, officers and staff, 
and clients – all those who trust in us, and whose 
faith has never wavered. Bank of Commerce shall 
continue to deliver the quality of service and
integrity that our customers and shareholders have 
come to expect.  

Jose T. Pardo

We, at Bank of 
Commerce, have 

experienced a fruitful 
year because of the 
diligent work of the 

men and women 
behind each and 
every department. 
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Last year was a year of challenges and triumphs 
for Bank of Commerce. We set out on a path of 
improvement two years ago, and today our efforts 
are bearing fruit. Total assets grew by 18% to 
P140.7 billion, from P118.9 billion a year ago.
	
To sustain this momentum, we focused on 
improving the quality of the products and services 
that we provide our customers.

The service superiority program was launched to 
be the platform in achieving the vision of becoming 
the bank of choice for our customers. The program 
started with the senior management team who 
established the benchmarks for superior banking 
service. The cascading process will cover all middle 
management and staff personnel in marketing and 
non-marketing positions. This was designed to 
transform the Bank and be able to deliver world-
class customer service on all levels.

In addressing customer service, we turned our 
focus on the Branch Banking Group. Branch 
Operations was transferred to the Branch Banking 
Group and Branch Operations Control Centers 
were set-up nationwide. These initiatives made 
great progress in streamlining processes and 
improving service delivery and control. As a result, 
branch personnel now have more time for 
cross-selling and business development. 

The Bank now has 125 branches. It added three 
(3) new branches in the restricted areas of Pasig 
City and Makati City. Another branch was opened 
in Bonifacio Global City, Taguig. Deposits grew at 
19% to P119.6 billion from 2013 year-end balance 
of P100.3 billion.

In our efforts to convert non-performing assets to 
earning assets, past due loans dropped by 34%. 
This improved the Bank’s Past Due Loans ratio. 
Likewise, we also saw substantial take up of Real 
and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA ) accounts 
which contributed to one-off gains from the sale. 

Corollary to increasing efficiency, the Bank has 
taken great strides to cut operating costs including 

the rationalization of our ATM network. These cost-
saving initiatives registered gains on our operating 
expenses. 

To diversify the loan portfolio, we launched the 
Small Business Loan product. The objective is to 
attract small and medium enterprises which are the 
core of our branch customers. This will provide the 
momentum for our targeted SME loan volume in 
the coming years.

The Consumer Loan portfolio grew by 22%. 
Working with developers and car dealerships, our 
home and auto loans increased from P3.0 billion to 
P3.8 billion and is expected to further grow in 2015. 

To increase fee-based income, we launched the 
Forex Center service, targeting regular travelers 
and overseas contract workers. This initiative 
serves to complement the Bank’s remittance 
business which took off last year with the 
deployment of BOC Remit System allowing real 
time, online connectivity with our remittance 
partners worldwide.  We re-launched the Retail 
and Corporate Internet Banking products with 

We look forward 
to 2015 with optimism. 

With the concerted 
efforts of the Bank’s 
human resources, 

we hope to continue 
reshaping the 

organization into 
a more efficient and 

profitable organization.
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enhanced features. This aims to encourage 
customers to transact via the internet banking 
platform regular banking services such as, bills 
payment, fund transfers, card loading and other 
services.

To attract the younger segment of the population, 
the Junior Smart Savers deposit account product 
was introduced. The account comes with a mobile 
app designed specifically for the target market, 
i.e., children of existing Clients. It provides access 
to games, discounts and promos from partner 
merchants.

The Bank’s net income for 2014 was P1.33 
billion, a significant increase from last year. This 
was a product of the dedication of the men 
and women behind Bank of Commerce.

We look forward to 2015 with optimism. 
With the concerted efforts of the Bank’s 
human resources, we hope to 
continue reshaping the organization 
into a more efficient and 
profitable organization.

Roberto C. Benares
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Corporate Governance

Adoption Of Manual On Corporate Governance

Bank of Commerce adopted a Manual on Corporate 
Governance pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission 
Memorandum Circular No. 6 Series of 2009 and No. 9 Series 
of 2014 issued on June 22, 2009 and May 6, 2014, respectively, 
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Circular No. 840 issued on 
July 2, 2014 and Section X141 of the BSP 2013 Manual of 
Regulations for Banks. Said Manual is being updated every 
year or as often as needed when there are significant changes 
in laws and regulations. The Manual also incorporates the 
applicable provisions of the General Banking Law of 2000.   

The Manual on Corporate Governance contains the principles 
of sound corporate governance which shall be adhered to by 
all directors, officers and employees of Bank of Commerce as 
they discharge their respective duties and responsibilities. It 
emphasizes the Board of Directors’ commitment to prudently 
manage the Bank thereby preserving the trust and confidence 
reposed on it by its clients and other stakeholders. It also 
serves as a guide in the attainment of the Bank’s mission, vision 
and values.

One very important element of the Corporate Governance 
Manual is the adoption last year of the Related Party 
Transactions Policy and the creation of the Related Party 
Transactions Committee. The Bank recognizes that certain 
transactions involving related parties present a heightened 
risk of conflict of interest or the perception thereof. The policy 
defines terms to ensure that such transactions are entered into 
on an arm’s length basis and are consistent with the Bank and 
its shareholders’ interests.

Board Governance

The Board of Directors (the Board) is primarily responsible for 
the sound governance of the Bank. Corollary to setting the 
policies for the accomplishment of corporate objectives, it 
also provides an independent check on Management.  It is the 
Board’s responsibility to foster the long-term success of the 
Bank and to sustain its competitiveness and profitability in a 
manner consistent with its corporate objectives and the best 
interest of the stockholders and other stakeholders.

Board Of Directors

Bank of Commerce has fifteen (15) Directors, four (4) of whom 
are independent directors. The Board of Directors is composed 
of individuals with diverse experiences, backgrounds and 
perspectives. The membership of the Board is a combination of 
executive and non-executive directors, and no director or small 
group of directors dominates the decision-making process. The 
directors possess such qualifications and stature that enable 
each of them to effectively participate in the deliberations of the 
Board.

An Independent Director is one, who apart from the required 
minimum shareholding, is independent of management and 
free from any business or other relationship which could 
interfere with his exercise of independent judgment when 
carrying out his responsibilities as a director. An independent 
director may only serve as such for a total of five (5) consecutive 
years, provided that the maximum term and any “cooling off” 
period prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) shall apply. The maximum number of companies within 
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the conglomerate in which an individual can serve as an 
independent director as prescribed by the SEC is also being 
implemented.

A director’s office is one of trust and confidence. A director is 
expected to act in the best interest of the Bank and in a manner 
characterized by transparency, accountability and fairness. 
He should also exercise leadership, prudence and integrity 
in directing the Bank towards sustained progress. The Board 
formulates the Bank’s vision, mission, strategic objectives, 
policies and procedures that guide its activities, including the 
means to effectively monitor Management’s performance. 

To effectively carry out their duties and responsibilities, the 
members of the Board of Directors are required to attend 
a program on corporate governance conducted by training 
providers duly accredited by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

Board Committees

The Board has constituted the following committees to guide 
Management in implementing sound corporate governance: 
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Board Risk 
Oversight Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, 
Nominations, Compensation and Remuneration Committee, 
Trust & Investment Committee, and Related Party Transactions 
Committee. These committees regularly hold meetings as 
mandated in their respective Charters.

The Corporate Secretary

The Corporate Secretary is responsible for the safekeeping and 
preservation of the integrity of the minutes of the meetings 
of the Board and its committees, as well as the other official 
records of the Bank. He should be loyal to the mission, vision 
and objectives of the Bank, work fairly and objectively with the 

Board, Management, stockholders and other stakeholders. He 
should be aware of the laws, rules and regulations necessary 
in the performance of his duties and responsibilities and should 
ensure that all the Board procedures, rules and regulations are 
strictly followed by the members.

The Compliance Officer

The Board appointed a Compliance Officer who reports to 
the Board of Directors through the Corporate Governance 
Committee. He should have the skills and expertise to 
provide appropriate guidance and direction to the Bank on 
the development, implementation and maintenance of the 
Compliance Program. He is responsible for coordinating, 
monitoring and facilitating compliance with existing laws, rules 
and regulations. If any violation is found, the matter is reported 
to the appropriate level of management or to the Board together 
with appropriate recommendations to prevent recurrence and 
the necessity for imposing disciplinary action, when called for.

Board Performance And Evaluation

The Board holds regular monthly meetings to enable directors 
to discharge their mandated duties and responsibilities. Special 
meetings are also held from time to time as the need arises. 
In addition to the Board meetings, the directors attend the 
meetings of their respective Board Committees.

The Board has instituted and adopted an internal rating system 
consisting of self-rating and peer rating of individual members 
as well as rating the performance of the Board as a whole. The 
performance of the different Board committees is rated by the 
Corporate Governance Committee. The rating process is done 
annually and seeks to measure the performance of the Board 
of Directors and the Committees against set targets and other 
criteria as defined by the Board.
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Remuneration For Directors And Officers

Directors are entitled to per diem allowance for their attendance 
at Board of Directors and Board Committee meetings. The Bank 
ensures these allowances are at par with peers. Corollary to 
this, the Bank utilizes data gathered from an industry survey 
to ensure that remuneration packages of the Bank’s Directors, 
senior executives, and officers are within industry standards.  

Employee performance is recognized through periodic 
performance assessments. This process provides the basis for 
salary increases and performance bonuses.

Adequate And Timely Information

To enable the members of the Board to properly fulfill their 
duties and responsibilities, they are provided with complete, 
adequate and timely information on matters to be taken up 
in their meetings. They are given independent access to 
Management and the Corporate Secretary at all times to enable 
them to properly perform their duties and responsibilities.

Financial Reporting, Controls & Audit

The Board endeavors to protect shareholders value through 
adequate financial controls. Thus, the Board fosters and 
encourages a corporate environment of strong internal controls, 
fiscal accountability, high ethical standards and compliance with 
laws and codes of conduct. The Board also has a special duty 
to its shareholders to present a balanced and understandable 
assessment of the Bank’s performance and financial position. 
Specifically, the Board commits to accurate Financial Reporting, 
Transparency, robust Internal Control, adherence to accepted 
Accounting Standards and Auditor Independence.

Stockholders’ Rights & Protection  
Of Minority Stockholders’ Interest

The Board respects the rights of the stockholders as provided 
for in the Corporation Code and ensures that they can freely 
vote on all matters that require their consent or approval, 
exercise their pre-emptive right to all stock issuances of the 
Bank, inspect the Bank’s books and records, and access 
information on dividends and appraisal right.

Stakeholders

The Board has formulated policies to afford an open channel 
of communication for the Bank’s various stakeholders so they 
can express their concerns and other views to the Bank. It 
recognizes their rights as established by law and encourages 
their active participation in promoting financially sound, and 
socially responsible endeavors. 

Code Of Ethics And Standards

The Board upholds the Bank’s Code of Conduct. It regularly 
reviews this Code, updates it whenever necessary and 
communicates it to all the officers and employees of the Bank. 
It ensures that compliance with this Code is incorporated in the 
Bank’s performance assessment system.

Disclosure And Transparency

The Board commits  that all essential and material  information  
about the Bank which could adversely affect its viability or the 
interest of its stockholders and other stakeholders  shall be 
publicly and timely disclosed. Such information shall include, 
among others, earnings result, acquisition or disposition 
of assets, off balance sheet transactions, related party 
transactions, and other indirect remuneration of members of 
the Board and Management.
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Risk Management 

Risk Philosophy And Guiding Principles

The Bank’s goal is the generation of steady returns to 
shareholders’ capital. As a result, the Bank’s business principles, 
strategies and operations are designed to achieve cashflows in 
excess of its obligations to its fund providers and stakeholders. 
In order to achieve this, the Bank takes risks which are inherent 
in the conduct of its commercial banking franchise. Risk taking 
presents opportunities to earn more than expected returns 
provided risk taking is intentional, investigated and controlled. 
The Bank’s risk-taking activities are guided by the following 
principles:

•	 The Bank is in the business of taking risks.
•	 The Bank takes risks after a deliberate process to identify 

the risks, to dimension them, and to decide whether to 
mitigate, control, accept or transfer the risk.

•	 The Bank adopts risk management practices suited to the 
scope and sophistication of its business and in line with 
global best practices.

•	 The Bank’s risk management is the concern of everyone.
•	 The Bank recognizes the independence of risk managers 

and risk takers from each other.

Risk Management Oversight

The Bank’s Board of Directors (BOD), Board Risk Oversight 
Committee (BROC), and Risk Management Division (RSK) 
shall be responsible for setting the overall risk management 
framework and risk appetite of the Bank including setting the 
“tone at the top,” reviewing strategy and approving the Bank’s 
risk appetite. The BOD is the sole arbiter of the risks taken by 
the organization. It has the sole discretion to determine what 
manner (strategic direction) and magnitude (risk appetite) of 
risk are suitable for the organization. The Board of Directors 
develops both the strategic direction and the risk appetite with 
inputs provided by management. 

The Board established a BROC to oversee the promotion 
of a risk management culture within the Bank. The BROC 
is responsible for establishing and maintaining a sound risk 
management system. It assists the Board in its risk oversight 
function by:

•	 Identifying and evaluating risk exposures;
•	 Developing risk management strategies;
•	 Implementing and periodically reviewing the risk 

management framework; and
•	 Promoting a culture that is conscious of the importance of 

risk management and capital adequacy.

Risk Management Division

Bank of Commerce considers the understanding and the 
management of risk as a key part of its business strategy. 
RSK is mandated to strengthen the Bank’s risk management 
infrastructure to meet the requirements of its business. 

RSK implements the risk management directives of the Board 
and the BROC by:

•	 Formulating and recommending policies to manage market, 
asset liability, credit, operational, information technology and 
trust risks arising from the business of the Bank;

•	 Implementing the risk management framework approved by 
the Board of Directors;

•	 Actively promoting a culture of risk awareness and risk 
management; and

•	 Coordinating with Finance and Controllership Group on the 
adequacy of the Bank’s capital in absorbing the risks present 
in the Bank’s business. 

RSK reports to the Board through the BROC, and is 
independent from the risk-taking business units of the Bank. 
Headed by the Chief Risk Officer, it is comprised of the 
following departments:

Credit Risk Management

The Credit Risk Management Department (CRM) formulates 
and recommends policies to manage the credit risk present 
in the asset portfolios of the Bank. It is responsible for the 
development of credit risk measurement models, and leads the 
validation of credit risk rating systems employed by the Bank. 
CRM recommends to the BROC portfolio limits and monitors 
and reports credit exposure against the limits. It also subjects 
portfolio credit exposures to stress scenarios and reports the 
results to the BROC.

Market And Asset Liability Risk Management

The Market and Asset Liability Risk Management Department 
(MRM) of the Bank oversees the identification, assessment, 
monitoring and controlling of market and liquidity risks. It 
is responsible for recommending market and liquidity risk 
management policies, setting uniform standards of risk 
assessment and capital adequacy. MRM provides senior 
management with risk assessments of treasury managed 
assets as well as the liquidity profile of the Bank. It 
supplements the Value at Risk methodology with sensitivity 
and duration measures as well as subjects Treasury positions to 
stress scenarios to provide a more forward view of risk. Based 
on these measures, MRM analyzes exceptions to set market 
and liquidity risk limits.
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Operational Risk Management

Operational Risk Management Department (ORM) monitors the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of internal control 
to ensure that these systems minimize operational risks and 
identify exposure while the consequences are still avoidable. 
ORM provides effective assessment of inherent general and 
functional risks to ensure the operational soundness of the 
organization and its ongoing operations. ORM also assists line 
units to improve the operational and system risks management 
process of the organization.

Information Technology Risk Management

The Information Technology Risk Management (ITRM) focuses 
on the identification, monitoring, advisory and reporting of 
technology-related risk issues arising from the technology 
transformation efforts of the Bank and the speed of innovation 
in products and services delivered on an information technology 
platform. It ensures the soundness of the organization’s 
information technology systems and the continuous relevance 
and enforcement of the Information Security Policies and 
Procedures.

Trust Risk Management

The Trust Risk Management (TRM) ensures the management 
of risk in the business operations of Trust Services Division and 
reports to the Trust Investment Committee (TIC) and BROC 
periodically. TRM develops and enhances the policies and 
procedures in operational, credit, liquidity and market risks in 
accordance with the risk management framework of the Bank. 
It is responsible for implementing approved strategies in a way 
that will limit fiduciary risks and reinforce compliance with laws 
and regulations.

Risk Measurement And Reporting Systems

The Bank’s capital adequacy is determined by measuring credit, 
market and operational risk exposures using standardized or 
basic approaches as suggested by the BSP. Risks exposures are 
measured both individually and in aggregate amounts. 

Risk measurements are done by respective risk taking
personnel and groups but are independently validated, analyzed
and reported by the RSK. Market risks are measured by mark-to 
-market analysis on portfolios. These exposures are also
stress-tested under worst-case scenarios.

Quality of credit risks is measured via risk classifications of 
accounts using Internal Credit Rating Systems together with 

the BSP risk classifications of borrowing accounts. Senior 
management evaluates the required provisions for loan losses 
based on these data on a monthly basis. All risk information are 
processed, analyzed and consolidated for proper reporting to 
the BOD through BROC, TIC, Auditcom, Senior Executive Team 
and various management committees of the Bank. 

Actual and estimated risk exposures and losses at Treasury, 
Corporate and Consumer Banking, Operations, and Branches 
are consolidated for regular reporting. Reports include, among 
others, portfolio mix, liquidity and maturity matching, interest 
rate matching, trading gains and losses, sensitivity and back-
testing results, top borrowers, non-performing assets and 
loans, industry exposures, large exposures, fines and penalties, 
employee fraud cases, status of legal cases, service level of 
major information technology systems and ATMs. 

RSK streamlined the reporting of the enterprise – wide risk 
profile of the bank through the periodic presentation and 
publication of the Risk Dashboard. This provides a readily 
available snapshot that highlights risk concerns encompassing 
the major business risk areas: Market, Asset and Liability, 
Credit, Corporate, Commercial, and Consumer Lending, 
Operations, Information Technology, and Trust.
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Risk Management 

Risk Exposures and Assessments
(As reported to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas)

Risk Weighted Assets
Bank of Commerce risk weighted assets at the end of 2014 totaled PHP 66.1 billion.

RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 2014 2013
   Credit Risk 59,155 59,016
     On-Balance Sheet 58,881 58,535
     Commitments 338 373
     Contingencies -   108
Deduction: GLLP (in excess of 1% of credit risk-weighted assets) 64 - 
   Market Risk 737 1,839
     Interest Rate Risk 209 592

  Foreign Exchange Risk 528 1,247
   Operational Risk 6,195 6,860
TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 66,087 67,715
* Amounts in millions

Credit Risk

The Bank measures its exposure to credit risk using the standardized approach. This approach allows the bank to utilize a wider 
differentiation of risk weights and a wider recognition of risk mitigation techniques without taking in excessive complexity in the 
process. 

Under this approach, the Bank multiplies its period-end credit risk exposures by a specified risk weight between zero and one 
hundred fifty percent. The applicable weight depends on the rating provided by an External Credit Assessment Institution recognized 
by the BSP. Credit risk exposures at the end of 2014 include PHP137.764 billion in balance sheet exposure.
 
All exposures arising from balance sheet items are net of provisions set aside to absorb credit losses:

ON-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ASSESSED WEIGHT FOR CREDIT RISK 2014 2013
Cash & Other Cash Items 2,325 1,672 
Due From Banks (including ILR) 58,443 36,461 
Securities 27,198 28,257 
   Sovereign 23,348 23,786 
   Bank -   -   
   Corporate 3,850 4,471 
Loan Portfolio 40,208 42,289 
   Loans to Corporates 35,410 38,175 
   Loans to Individuals - Qualified Residential REM 2,108 1,542 
   Loans to Individuals - Other Loans 2,081 1,841 
   Defaulted Exposures - Qualified Residential REM 161 148 
   Defaulted Exposures - Other Loans 448 583 
Sales Contracts Receivable 1,135 1,259 
Real & Other Properties Acquired 2,387 1,975 
Other Assets 6,068 6,852 
TOTAL ON-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS WEIGHTED FOR CREDIT RISK 137,764 118,765 
* Amounts in millions
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As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, other assets have been subjected to the following deductions:
 

2014 2013

Total Assets 139,128 118,111 

General Loan Loss Provisions 656 318 

Deductions

      Total Exposures Excluding Other Assets 131,696 111,914

       Financial assets held for trading 353 440

       Deferred tax assets 384 -   

      Other intangible assets 414 -   

      Other equity investments in non-financial allied 

           undertakings and non-allied undertakings 53 27

      Significant Minority Investments -  51

      Reciprocal Equity Investments 20 18

      Accumulated market gains/(losses) on AFS -   (1,264)

      Total carrying amount of Securitization Exposures         796 391

Total Other Assets 6,068 6,852
* Amounts in millions

The Bank considers credit risk mitigation as a means to lower its exposure to credit risk. At the end of 2014, PHP0.704 billion in 
credit risk exposures carried mitigation either in the form of qualified guarantees from third parties (PHP1 million) or by way of full 
asset cover (PHP703 million). These credit risk items eventually carried zero risk weight due to the effectiveness of the mitigation. 

ON-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS COVERED BY CREDIT RISK MITIGATION 2014 2013
Exposures Covered by Credit Risk Mitigation 704 1,866
Items Covered by Guarantee (After Risk Weighting) - -
Items Covered by Collateral (After Risk Weighting) - -
* Amounts in millions

The Bank acknowledges the potential credit exposure arising from having committed to extend credit to a customer. It uses a 
credit conversion factor prescribed by banking regulations (between twenty and one hundred percent) to arrive at a loan equivalent 
exposure. The total loan equivalent exposure of the bank to such commitments at the end of 2014 was PHP0.338 billion.

COMMITMENTS TO LEND (LOAN EQUIVALENT EXPOSURE) 2014 2013
Direct Credit Substitutes 333 333
Transaction-related Contingencies 2 1
Trade-related Contingencies 3 39
Other Commitments - -
Total Commitments to Lend (Loan Equivalent Exposure) 338 373
* Amounts in millions

Net credit risk-weighted exposure at the end of 2014 was PHP59.155 billion, after the allowed deductions arising from general loan 
loss provisions in excess of 1% of total credit risk-weighted assets. This credit exposure represents 89.5% of total risk-weighted 
assets.  

The on-balance sheet credit risk weighted assets without credit mitigation totaled P58.881billion. On-balance sheet exposure makes 
up 99.4% of total credit-risked weight assets while the remainder is in off-balance sheet assets particularly commitments to lend. 
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ON-BALANCE SHEET CREDIT RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 2014 2013
Cash & Other Cash Items 30 3
Due From Banks (including ILR) 4,269 3,079
Securities 4,197 3,770
   Sovereign 3,248 1,800
   Bank - -
   Corporate 949 1,970
Loan Portfolio 39,389 40,419
   Loans to Corporates 35,029 36,676
   Loans to Individuals - Qualified Residential REM 1,770 1,246
   Loans to Individuals - Other Loans 1,758 1,474
   Defaulted Exposures - Qualified Residential REM 161 148
   Defaulted Exposures - Other Loans 671 875
Sales Contracts Receivable 1,348 1,449
Real & Other Properties Acquired 3,580 2,963
Other Assets 6,068 6,852
TOTAL CREDIT RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 58,881 58,535
* Amounts in millions

Market Risk

The Bank measures its exposure to market risk using the standardized approach under Philippine Banking Regulation. Under this 
approach, the Bank applied risk weights defined by regulation to outstanding exposures to interest rates and to foreign exchange 
rates. Total market risk weighted assets at the end of 2014 was PHP737 million.

MARKET RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 2014 2013
 Interest Rate Risk Specific to the Issuer of Debt Instruments 32 369
 Interest Rate Risk Attributable to Market Conditions 177 223
 Foreign Exchange Risk 528 1,247
TOTAL MARKET RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 737 1,839
* Amounts in millions

Operational Risk

The Bank measures its exposure to operational risk using the basic indicator approach under Philippine Banking Regulation. The 
approach utilizes the historical total annual gross income as the measure of risk exposure. Total operational risk weighted assets at 
the end of 2014 was PHP6.2 billion. 

OPERATIONAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS 2014 2013
Average income of the Previous Three Years 3,304 3,659
Capital Charge (15 pct of Average Income) 496 549
Calibration (Capital Charge times 1.25) 619 686
TOTAL OPERATIONAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS
(Calibrated Capital Charge times 10)

6,195 6,860

* Amounts in millions

Structured Products 

The Bank’s investment in structured products was significantly reduced in 2014.  Its credit-linked notes were all sold.  Only its exposure 
to collateralized debt obligations was left.  These remaining investments were booked as Unquoted Debt Securities Classified as 
Loans (UDSCL).  The Bank maintained provision for probable losses for these investments to the extent assessment has proven 
the asset uncollectible.  With this allowance and the sale of its credit-linked notes, the total carrying value of its structured products 
portfolio was greatly reduced. As of December 31, 2014, the total carrying value of the Bank’s structured products amounting to 
PHP796 million represents investment in MRT Tranche 3 Notes. 

Risk Management 
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Investment in Structured Products in 2014
Carrying Value of 
Host Instrument

Carrying Value 
of Embedded 

Derivatives
Gross Exposure

Provision 
for Loss

Total 
Carrying Value 

of  Exposure
Credit-Linked Notes (ROP Reference) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Collateralized Debt Obligations 317.910 0.000 317.910 (317.910) 0.000

Other Structured Investments 795.920 0.000 795.920 0.000 795.920

TOTAL 1,113.830 0.000 1,113.830 (317.910) 795.920 

Investment in Structured Products in 2013
Carrying Value of 
Host Instrument

Carrying Value 
of Embedded 

Derivatives
Gross Exposure

Provision 
for Loss

Total 
Carrying Value 

of Exposure
Credit-Linked Notes (ROP Reference) 2,296.700 (7.450) 2,289.250 0.000 2,289.250

Collateralized Debt Obligations 1,168.340 0.000 1,168.340 (874.870) 293.470

Other Structured Investments 430.520 0.000 430.520 0.000 430.520

TOTAL 3,895.560 (7.450) 3,888.110 (874.870) 3,013.240 

* Amounts in millions

Other Risk Disclosures

Compliance Risk 

Compliance risk is one that the Bank will address, not by setting up capital against possible events but through the strengthening 
of its compliance infrastructure. This infrastructure will require all persons within the organization to know the laws, rules, and 
regulations attendant to their functions. In addition, the units in charge of compliance (legal, regulatory, tax) regularly disseminate 
any new issuances for the understanding of concerned units. 

Monitoring and assessment is performed regularly, creating a comfort level that Compliance continues to function effectively and 
efficiently. For this purpose, the Bank implements the three-pronged approach in Compliance Testing.  These are the Compliance 
Self-Assessment performed by the units themselves; the Independent Compliance Testing, a validation exercise performed by 
the Compliance Division on selected units and branches; supplemented by validation performed by Internal Audit on all units and 
branches included in the Annual Audit Work Program.  

Deputy Compliance Officers (DCO) are appointed within each of the operating and business units, following a Compliance 
Program that is anchored on self- assessment. Compliance Self-Assessment is done on a periodic basis using the Compliance 
Self-Assessment Checklist.  The result of Compliance Self-Assessment is validated through the Independent Compliance Testing.  
Results of Compliance Self-Assessment and Independent Compliance Testing are reported to the Corporate Governance Committee 
and appropriate levels of Management.  Follow through is being done until findings/exceptions are fully corrected.       

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk proceeds from negative public opinion and has the potential to erode the perception of the bank as a worthy 
counterparty or investment target. Negative perception on the part of customers, providers of funding, or regulators can adversely 
affect a bank’s ability to maintain existing, or establish new, business relationships or to continue accessing sources of funding. 

As Bank of Commerce presently neither uses capital market sensitive funding nor publicly listed stock, its funding cost and equity 
value remain shielded from reputational risk events and market discipline rendering fair estimate difficult to quantify. Nevertheless, 
the impact on reputation of events that may occur in the regular course of business remains a top priority of Senior Management 
and the Board.
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Risk Management 

Legal Risk 

Legal risk arises from failure in the implementation of necessary control measures as well as imperfect documentation of transactions.  
The primary functions of the Bank’s Legal Services Division (LSD) comprise of rendering legal advice and document review to ensure that 
relevant laws are complied with, Bank interest is duly protected, and identified risks are imparted to responsible units of the Bank.  LSD 
also provides Senior Management and the BROC regular updates on any lawsuits involving the Bank.

Pension Risk 

The Bank enlists the assistance of third party consultants to conduct actuarial evaluation on the condition of the retirement plan once a 
year in order to address any erosion in the explanatory power or significance of the actuarial models used to project benefit obligations. 

Valuation of both the projected benefit obligation and the present value of the plan assets assumes rates of discount, asset return and 
compensation growth. These parameters may properly reflect market conditions at the time of measurement but later be non-reflective 
as market conditions change. 

The annual third party actuarial evaluation of the condition of the retirement plan considers the relevance of the assumption used 
in valuation and recommends the necessary adjustments to properly reflect the value of plan assets and liabilities. The valuation 
assumptions last underwent review and adjustment during the actuarial report of 2014.

Model Risk

The Bank contracts external entities to validate internal models used to measure market, asset and liability risks as well as rating models 
for the classification of borrowers’ credit risk. Results of these validation exercises are reported to management, the BROC, and Audit 
Committee.
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Capital Management

The Board recognizes that capital adequacy is the foundation of institutional strength and therefore ensures that Bank of Commerce 
(the Bank) maintains an adequate level of capital to support business growth and maintain depositor and creditor confidence.

The Bank’s capital management framework is designed to ensure that regulatory requirements are met at all times cognizant of 
the Bank’s risk profile and target ratios approved by the Board. In addition, the Bank has its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment 
Process (ICAAP), which enables the Bank to assess the capital impact of other risks apart from credit, market and operational risks.

Regulatory Capital Oversight

The Board oversees the deployment of capital funds bankwide, ensuring that Capital-to-Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CAR) of 
the Bank meets or exceeds the minimum regulatory requirements. The following tables exhibit the Bank’s capital condition as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

* Amounts in millions 2014 2013
Gross Qualifying Capital 16,277.97 16,006.74
Less: Regulatory deductions 1,667.60 488.27
Total Qualifying Capital 14,610.37 15,518.47

Credit risk-weighted assets 59,155.03 59,016.06
Credit risk-weighted assets 737.58 1,838.66
Market risk-weighted assets 6,194.55 6,860.12
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 66,087.16 67,714.84

Capital Adequacy Ratio or “CAR” 
Regulatory minimum is 10% 22.11 22.92
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
Regulatory minimum is 7.5% 21.16 22.75
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio
Regulatory minimum is 6% 21.16 22.75

Source: CAR Report as of December 31, 2014 and 2013

The above ratios represent a measure of capital supply relative to the total risk-weighted assets and are measured against 
regulatory minimum requirements. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank has complied with the minimum regulatory 
required capital.

Tier 1 Capital comprised common stock, additional paid-in capital and surplus. Common equity tier 1 represents ordinary share 
capital, share premium and retained earnings, including cumulative translation adjustment (refer to Note 3 of the Notes to Audited 
Financial Statements for the nature of the capital accounts).

Risk weighted assets are determined based on standardized regulatory approach for credit risk (both on-and-off balance sheet 
exposures) and market risk, while operational risks are based on basic indicator approach (BIA). 

2014 2013

* Amounts in millions

Risk Weighted 
Assets

Capital 
Requirements

Risk Weighted 
Assets

Capital 
Requirements

Credit Risk 59,155.03 5,915.50 59,016.06  5,901.60 
Market Risk 737.58 73.76 1,838.66 183.87 
Operational Risk 6,194.55 619.46 6,860.12 686.01 

66,087.16 6,608.72 67,714.84  6,771.48 

Source: CAR Report as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
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The following tables exhibit the Bank’s capital condition as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

* Amounts in millions 2014 2013
Paid-up Common Stock 11,224.11 11,224.11 
Additional Paid-in Capital 8,748.53 8,748.53 
Retained Earnings/(Deficit)  (4,285.05)  (4,298.72)
Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation  (33.47)  (23.88)
Gross Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital 15,654.12 15,650.04 
Appraisal Increment Reserve – Bank Premises 31.66 38.71
General Loan Loss Provision 592.19 318.00
Gross Tier 2 Capital 623.85 356.71
Less: Regulatory Adjustments To Qualifying Capital
Deferred Tax Assets 383.56 -
Other Intangible Assets 414.21 -
Other Equity Investments In Non-Financial Allied Undertakings 
          and Non-Allied Undertakings 53.40 27.37 
Reciprocal Equity Investments 20.50 18.17 
Securitization Tranches And Structured Products Which Are Rated      
          below Investment Grade Or Are Unrated 795.93 391.42
Significant Minority Investments In Banks And Quasi-Banks, And 
         Other Financial Allied Undertakings - 51.31
Total Regulatory Adjustments To Qualifying Capital 1,667.60 488.27 
Adjusted CET1 Capital 13,986.52 15,405.90 
Adjusted Tier 2 Capital 623.85 112.57 
Total Qualifying Capital 14,610.37 15,518.47

Source: CAR Report as of December 31, 2014 and 2013

Components of the regulatory qualifying capital are determined based on the BSP’s regulatory accounting policy, which differs from 
PFRS in some respects.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (Icaap) Oversight

The Board oversees the ICAAP of the Bank, and recognizes the applicability of regulatory changes, such as Basel III, in its ICAAP. 
The ICAAP enables the Bank to properly understand the risks in its strategic plans and also to assess how much capital is required 
to withstand these risks. Integrating ICAAP into the organization creates a culture of collective responsibility and accountability to 
preserve and maximize the value of invested capital. 

The Bank’s management constantly monitors compliance with the minimum regulatory capital requirements as well as with internal 
capital requirements, as determined under its ICAAP. Management regularly reports to the Board the state of capital adequacy 
compliance to enable the Board to make proper decisions regarding risk and capital.

The Board Of Directors And The Board Risk Oversight Committee

The Board of Directors, as the body responsible for the governance of the Bank, is the sole arbiter of the risks taken by the Bank and 
alone exercises discretion over the manner (strategic direction) and magnitude (risk appetite) in which the Bank’s capital is placed at 
risk in pursuit of the Bank’s strategic growth and profit targets.

The Board of Directors establishes an infrastructure that provides regular reports to ensure that the Board has sufficient information 
to make proper decisions on risk and capital.

The Board of Directors established within itself a Board Risk Oversight Committee (BROC) that oversees the risk management 
infrastructure of the Bank including the review of the ability of the Bank to absorb the risks where it has exposure. 

Icaap Steering Committee

The ICAAP Steering Committee is a management committee that is responsible for overseeing the development of the assessment 
process and for monitoring the implementation and integration of the ICAAP. The Committee:

1.	 Monitors the Bank’s compliance with mandated minimum capital requirements;
2.	 Reviews the ICAAP to ensure it effectively approximates the Bank’s ability to absorb losses; and
3.	 Formulates and recommends guidelines, policies and procedures which enable the Bank to maintain a level of qualified capital 

appropriate for the Bank’s risk profile. 

The ICAAP Report is issued by the ICAAP Committee to the Board annually, conveying the results of the evaluation of the 
Bank’s ICAAP.  The 2014 ICAAP Report highlighted the sufficiency of the Bank’s compliance with regulatory and internal capital 
requirements considering the strategic plans from 2015 through 2017, and the sufficiency of management’s Capital Contingency Plan 
as well as Capital Build-up Program from 2015 through 2018, which have been approved by the BROC and Board.
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Dakilang Handog Foundation
Disiplina Village, Valenzuela

In cooperation with San Miguel Foundation, Inc. (SMFI) and Dakilang 
Handog Foundation, Bank of Commerce successfully held its first 
ever Kid’s Camp in November 2014. Aptly themed “Ipakita mo Talino 
mo, Batang Pillipino,” the one-day camp gathered more than 50 
underprivileged children ages 6-12 years old who are residents of Disiplina 
Village in Valenzuela. Disiplina Village is a 1.9-hectare community in 
Barangay Ugong, Valenzuela that was expected to accommodate 900 
families in 56 16-unit cluster buildings. 

Bank of Commerce employees, including Senior Officers, served as 
volunteers in programs for foodfeeding, craftsmaking, fun and games, and  
community service. Special prizes and giveaways were also distributed 
by the Bank to kids and their families. Kid’s Camp is an extension of 
community support by Bank of Commerce as employees had previously 
participated in the construction of the residential cluster buildings in 
Disiplina Village in 2011.  

Handicare

Bank of Commerce continued to support programs of the Handicapped 
Care Association (HANDICARE) Inc., an advocate of the rights of indigent 
Persons with Disabilities (PWDs). 

HANDICARE is a non-stock, non-profit, socio-civic organization registered 
with the Department of Social Welfare and Development (DSWD). In 
November 2014, the organization led a private event in Megamall Cinema, 
the proceeds of which were utilized for the supplemental feeding program 
of indigent PWDs’ families, particularly their children.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Bank of Commerce believes in nation-building and remains committed to helping transform lives 
and building communities. Our passion to give back to the community reflects the commitment 
to our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives. We endeavor to broaden the scope of 
CSR and make a difference in society to positively impact the lives of Filipinos by engaging our 
employees’ time and talents in reaching out to underserved rural and urban communities.  
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Financial Highlights
ASSETS 2014 

(in billions)
2013 

(in billions)

Cash and Cash Equivalents P40.2 P22.7
Reserves 20.6 15.5
Securities (Net) 28.2 27.1
Loans and Receivables (Net) 42.8 46.0
Other Assets 8.9 7.6
TOTAL P140.7 P118.9

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits P119.6 P100.3
Other Liabilities 3.9 4.2
Equity 17.2 14.4
TOTAL P140.7 P118.9

2014 2013
Return of Average Equity 8.40% 7.30%

STATEMENT OF INCOME 2014 
(in billions)

2013 
(in billions)

Net Interest Margins P3.5 P2.8
Non-Financing Revenues 1.3 2.6
OPEX 3.8 3.8
Provisions for Loss (Reversed) -0.4 0.3
Expense from Income Tax 0.1 0.2
NET INCOME P1.3 P1.1

CAPITAL ADEQUACY 2014 
(in billions)

2013 
(in billions)

Total Qualifying Capital P14.6 P15.5
Risk Weighted Assets 66.1 67.7
CAR 22.10% 22.90%
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We made solid progress in 2014, inching 
towards the fulfillment of the Bank’s vision 
and goals. While there were challenges 
along the way, we banded together to 
overcome them. Together we have paved 
the way for a more efficient, productive, 
and rewarding 2015. 

Branch Banking Group

2014 was a year of consequential changes in the organization 
of Branch Banking. Branch operations was tranferred to branch 
Banking Group. The structural reorganization and process 
re-engineering that ensued contributed much to the renewal 
of the enthusiasm of branches to deliver their business 
commitments.

At the forefront of streamlining and cost reduction efforts, 
Branch Banking Group (BBG) embarked on multiple projects 
to enhance efficiency in terms of more expeditious service 
processes, amid stronger controls and lower overhead. Its 
creation of the Branch Operations Control Center (BOCC) 
effectively removed the backroom operations from the 
branches and allowed its personnel to put stronger focus on 
core business activities such as cross-selling, referrals and 
client servicing. This enabled Branch Banking to partner with 
the Consumer Lending Group, as branches gained more 
headway in bringing the Bank’s Home and Auto loan and credit 
card products to the target markets. Customer referrals by 
branches to Treasury and Trust also substantially increased. All 
these contributed in turn to BBG’s strategy of developing total 
customer relationships with its clients.

The BOCC also strengthened the transactional review and 
vetting processes, on top of generating substantial savings from 
a significant cut in the required manning.

BBG has given priority attention to branch image and location, 
as it positioned the branches more seriously to be the Bank’s 
distribution channels for its products and services. In 2014, 
the clients of the renovated branches in Grace Park, West 
Triangle and Banawe branches witnessed the smart makeover 
of the bank’s physical interiors into one of modern yet efficient 
and guest-friendly layout. Similar transformations were seen 
in the same year in Baguio, Tarlac and La Union, all of which 
were moved to new and more promising locations. In the 

same way, alongside the “Bayanihan” clutter-free program, 
the other branches have been refurbished, a number of them 
now showcasing the Bank’s new and trendy standard backwall 
murals. 

The Bank opened its 123rd branch at the upmarket Bonifacio 
Global High Street on July 2, 2014. To cap a year many 
described as BBG’s best in years, the Bank’s 124th and 125th 
branches opened almost simultaneously at the close of the year 
– the Pasig Blvd. Branch in Pasig City on December 8, 2014, and 
the Dela Rosa Branch in Makati City on December 10, 2014.

Consumer Lending Division

In the year 2014, the Consumer Lending team continued its 
strategic activities to reinforce its presence in the industry via a 
steady growth tempered with credit prudence.

The banner product continued to be Housing loans, which 
breached the PHP2 billion level, with Auto Loans following at 
PHP1 billion. Salary Loans granted to the Bank’s accredited 
companies was at PHP400 million. Delinquency rates continued 
to improve as a result of better accounts management in the 
Bank’s backroom.

The team generated the most business through third-party 
channels such as the top and middle-tier developers and top 
automobile dealerships.
  
In the middle of the year, the Bank extended its presence in 
Visayas and Mindanao by assigning channel managers in Cebu 
covering Auto Loans and Housing Loans.  This allowed CLD 
to be closer to the branches, developers and dealers in these 
areas.  The group looks forward to a more prominent role in 
the industry with a new Consumer Lending Head and a re-
engineered organization for 2015.

Trust Services Division

The year 2014 has been an exceptional year for the Trust 
Services Division. Assets Held In Trust (AHIT) amounted to 
PHP20.617 billion as of year-end 2014 which is a significant 
growth of 145% from 2013 level of PHP8.074 billion. This 
impressive growth was realized amidst market swings in 
the capital markets and the developing sophistication and 
investment needs of our client base.

Operational Highlights
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Investment Management Accounts (IMA) exhibited a 140% 
year-on-year growth contributing significantly to the increase 
in Trust asset level for 2014. Trust and Other Fiduciary 
Arrangements (TOFA) likewise, posted an impressive year-on-
year growth of 254%. Further, the Diversity Dollar Bond Fund 
and the Diversity Peso Bond Fund which are Unit Investment 
Trust Funds (UITF) managed by the Trust Services Division 
performed well within their respective UITF categories. This is 
primarily due to well-timed and skillful selection of investments 
as well as a more active participation in the sourcing of prime 
debt and equity securities in both the primary and secondary 
markets.

Operationally, the implementation of a new trust operating 
system is envisioned to meet the demands of a growing trust 
business. The Trust Services Division developed its first Equity 
UITF, the Diversity Dividend Focused Fund to make Bank of 
Commerce at par with the competitive trust landscape.

Trust Services Division will endeavor to further strengthen 
its fund management capabilities, offer more competitive 
products and expand its market reach with the end in view of 
establishing a stronger presence in the trust industry.

Treasury Management Group

Coming from a challenging 2013, Treasury Management Group 
opted to stay defensive entering 2014 as previous year’s woes 
still lingered at the start of the year.  December 2013 inflation 
printed at 4.1% and global funds were still seen leaving the 
country at this time. On the global front, investors were
anticipating the Fed’s first interest rate hike following the 
tapering of its quantitative easing policy. Risk-taking activities 
remained mindful of these uncertainties in the global and 
domestic markets as interest rates were foreseen to bottom 
out.

However, a steady, albeit slow, US economic growth coupled 
with well-behaved inflation supported the Fed’s gradual pace 
of tapering and dampened concerns of a drastic interest rate 
hike.  This provided an opportunity for bonds to improve which 
continued up to the latter part of the year. Meanwhile, the USD/
PHP currency pair likewise took its cue from the US growth 
story and the anticipated interest rate increase. 
 
Given this development, Treasury successfully re-balanced 
its securities portfolio and patiently realized trading gains by 
staying light and nimble while awaiting confirmation that yield 

appreciation will not happen within the year. It was also able 
to take advantage of the correction in the third quarter with an 
aggressive portfolio build up, setting up the group for a strong 
year-end finish.  This propelled Treasury to exceed the year’s 
trading gain target.

Corporate Banking Group

The past year was a period of consolidation and gearing up 
for the Corporate Banking Group (CBG). Total CBG loans at 
year-end 2014 amounted to PHP33.5 billion. This was down 
slightly from the year-ago level of PHP35.4 billion due mainly 
to unexpected loan paydowns in the large corporate segment. 
Without these paydowns, the total CBG loan portfolio would 
have registered a modest increase.
   
During the year, CBG pursued financing opportunities, through 
participations in loan syndications for selected PPP projects 
and obtained corresponding approvals which were targeted 
for implementation in 2015. CBG also expanded its credit 
footprint in the large corporate segment to leverage off the 
buoyant economic conditions and bright prospects in select 
sectors, among them, power, construction, infrastructure 
and real estate. Towards the end of the year, CBG improved 
its competitive stance by launching the initial 5 offerings in a 
comprehensive Corporate Internet Banking product suite that is 
expected to be rolled out in full in the coming year.  

CBG ended 2014 with an enhanced market posture and well-
poised to face the challenges of 2015.
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Board of Directors

Roberto C. Benares

•	 President & CEO
•	 Member, Board of 

Directors
•	 Vice Chairman, 

Executive Committee
•	 Chairman, IT Steering 

Committee
•	 Member, Trust and 

Investment Committee
•	 Member, Board Risk 

Oversight Committee

Jose T. Pardo

•	 Independent Director as 
Chairman, Board of Directors

•	 Chairman, Corporate 
Governance Committee 

•	 Chairman, Trust and 
Investment Committee

•	 Chairman, Nomination, 
Compensation & 
Remuneration Committee

Francis C. Chua

•	 Independent Director as 
Vice Chairman, Board of 
Directors

•	 Chairman, Executive 
Committee

•	 Member, Nomination, 
Compensation 
& Remuneration 
Committee (until 
October 2014)

Roman Felipe S. Reyes

•	 Independent Director 
as Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Chairman, Audit 
Committee

•	 Member, Nomination, 
Compensation & 
Remuneration Committee
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Aniano A. Desierto

•	 Independent Director 
as Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Corporate 
Governance 
Committee

•	 Member, Related 
Party Transaction 
Committee

Ramon A. De La Llana

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Audit 
Committee

•	 Member, Nomination, 
Compensation 
& Remuneration 
Committee

•	 Member, IT Steering 
Committee

Amor C. Iliscupidez

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Executive 
Committee

•	 Member, Trust and 
Investment Committee

•	 Member, Nomination, 
Compensation 
& Remuneration 
Committee

Marito L. Platon

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Corporate 
Governance Committee

•	 Chairman, Board Risk 
Oversight Committee
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Carolina G. Diangco

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Executive 
Committee

•	 Member, Related Party 
Transaction Committee

Benedicta D. Baladad

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Audit 
Committee

Geoffrey M. Martinez

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Executive 
Committee 

•	 Member, Nomination, 
Compensation & 
Remuneration Committee

Melinda Gonzales-Manto

•	 Independent Director as 
Member, Board of Directors

•	 Chairman, Related Party 
Transaction Committee

•	 Member, Audit Committee
•	 Member, Board Risk 

Oversight Committee

Board of Directors

28 Forging Ahead

Bank of Commerce AR 2014 (   BOOK   ) - Rev20  FA Rev02.indd   28 6/24/15   9:24 PM



Vicente L. Panlilio

•	 Adviser to the Board 
of Directors

•	 Adviser, Board Risk 
Oversight Committee

Fe B. Barin

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Corporate 
Governance 
Committee

•	 Member, Board Risk 
Oversight Committee

Alexander R. Magno

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Trust 
and Investment 
Committee

Francisco H. Villaruz, Jr.

•	 Member, Board of 
Directors

•	 Member, Audit 
Committee

•	 Member, Corporate 
Governance 
Committee
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Aurora T. Calderon

•	 Adviser to the 
	 Board of Directors
•	 Adviser, Audit Committee

Ferdinand K. Constantino

•	 Adviser to the Board of 
Directors

•	 Adviser, Trust & Investment 
Committee

•	 Adviser, Nomination, 
Compensation & 
Remuneration Committee

Evita C. Caballa

•	 Corporate Secretary

Margarito B. Teves

•	 Adviser to the Board of 
Directors

•	 Adviser, Board Risk 
Oversight Committee

Board of Directors
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Senior Executive Team

Emmanuel G. Herbosa
EVP / Branch Banking 
Group Head

Angelica H. Lavares
EVP / Strategic Support  
Group Head

Joseph C. Justiniano
SVP / Consumer Group Head

Carmelita R. Araneta
EVP /  Operations Group 
Head

Roberto C. Benares
President & Chief Executive 
Officer

Mary Mildred A. Bernardo
SVP / Credit Group Head

Ricardo A. Coreces
SVP / Corporate Banking 
Group Head

Felipe Martin F. Timbol
EVP / Treasury Management 
Group Head

Not in photo: 
Maximo V. Estrada
SVP / Consumer Group Head (until March 2015) 
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Victor C. Arboleda
SVP / Chief Compliance 
Officer
Adviser 

Reginald C. Nery 
SVP / Chief Audit 
Executive
Adviser

Edward Dennis J. Zshornack 
SVP / Chief Risk Officer 
Adviser

Alfredo J. Bautista 
FVP / Business Systems 
Division Head 
Secretariat

Edel Mary D. Vegamora
SVP / Chief Financial Officer & 
Controller /  FCG Group Head

Bernardo G. Talimban Jr.
FVP / Information 
Technology Services 
Division Head

Ma. Elena S. Sarmiento
SVP / Trust Services 
Division Head

Aurora C. Manguerra
FVP / Corporate Planning 
Division Head 
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Products and Services
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Retail Products 

•	 Savings Account with ATM
•	 Savings Account with Passbook
•	 Savings Account Plus
•	 Checking Account
•	 Complete Checking Account
•	 US Dollar Savings Account
•	 Euro Savings Account
•	 Junior Smart Savers Savings Account
•	 Premium Savings Account
•	 Premium Savings Account-Money Market
•	 Time Deposit
•	 One-Year Time Deposit
•	 PHP Future Secure Time Deposit (1, 3 and 5 Years)
•	 US Dollar Time Deposit
•	 Euro Time Deposit
•	 SSS Pension Account
•	 US Veterans Pension Savings Account (PHP and USD)
•	 Payroll Savings Account

Consumer Loans
 
•	 Home Loan
•	 Auto Loan
•	 Salary Loan

Credit Cards

•	 Bank of Commerce MasterCard

Alternative Channels 

•	 Retail Internet Banking
•	 Corporate Internet Banking
•	 ATM
•	 BancNet Internet Banking (BancNet Online)

Trust Products And Services 

• 	 Investment Management Services
• 	 Employee Benefit Trust
• 	 Pre-Need Accounts
• 	 Individual Trust Accounts
•	 Unit Investment Trust Funds
• 	 Trust under Indenture / Collateral Trust
• 	 Escrow Agency
• 	 Facility / Loan Agency
• 	 Other Institutional Trust / Agency Accounts
• 	 Other Fiduciary Services

Treasury Products 

•	 Fixed Income Government Securities (Peso / Dollar)
•	 Corporate Bonds
•	 Foreign Exchange

Corporate Banking 

• 	 Working Capital Loan
•  	 Term Loan
• 	 Capital Expenditure Financing
• 	 Project Financing
• 	 Small Business Loan
• 	 Foreign Currency Denominated Loan
• 	 Trade Financing
• 	 Letters of Credit
• 	 Export Packing Credit
• 	 Export Bills Purchase
• 	 Domestic Bills Purchase

Cash Management And Payment Services 

•	 Payroll/Payment Crediting Service
•	 Value Check Service (MC Cutting Service)
•	 Deposit Pick-Up Service
•	 Bills Payment Facility
•	 CheckWriter Plus
•	 Payroll Plus
•	 OTC Collection Service
•	 PDC Warehousing Facility
•	 CDT Payments (via BoC PAS5 Facility)
•	 BancNet BIR Electronic Filing and Payment System 
	 (BIR eFPS)
•	 BancNet Bills Payment
•	 BancNet POS
•	 BancNet Online Shopping
  
Remittance Services

•	 Credit to Bank of Commerce Account
•	 Credit to Accounts with Other Philippine Banks
•	 Cash Pick-Up via Bank of Commerce Branches
•	 Cash Pick-Up via Bank of Commerce Payout Partners
•	 Cash Delivery
•	 SSS Contributions / Loan Payments
•	 PhilHealth Contributions
•	 Pag-IBIG Contributions / Loan Payments
•	 MoneyGram Cash Pick-up Service
•	 Trans-Fast Cash Pick-up Service 
•	 Sikap Pinoy OFW Account
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The management of Bank of Commerce (the “Bank”) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2014 including the additonal components attached 
therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility includes 
designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate 
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has explained the financial statements 
of the Bank in accordance with the Philippine Standards on Accounting, and in its report to the stockholders, has 
expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon of such audit.

	 JOSE T. PARDO		  ROBERTO C. BENARES
	 Chairman of the Board		  President and Chief Executive Officer

		  EDEL MARY D. VEGAMORA
		  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this March 27, 2015, affiants exhibiting their Senior Citizen Identification No., 
Driver’s License No., and Passport No.,  as follows:

Names Identification Nos. Date of Issue Place of Issue

Jose T. Pardo
Roberto C. Benares
Edel Mary D. Vegamora

Senior Citizen ID No. 1725634
Driver’s License No. N14-72-006033
Passport No. EB4805235

July 31, 2002
May 20, 2014
February 27, 2012

Muntinlupa City
Makati City
DFA Manila

Doc. No. 211  
Page No. 44   
Book No. 1     
Series of 2015

Alexander F. Lim
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR MANDALUYONG
APPOINTMENT NO. 0438-15
UNTIL DECEMBER 31,2016
SMPC, 7 ST. FRANCIS ST., MANDALUYONG
PTR#2335816/JANUARY 9, 2015
ILR OR# 099033/JANUARY 13, 2015
ROLL OF ATTORNEYS#59509

Statement of Management’s Responsibility
for Financial Statements
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Statements of Financial Position
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Statements of Income

42 Forging Ahead

Bank of Commerce AR 2014 (   BOOK   ) - Rev20  FA Rev02.indd   42 6/24/15   9:25 PM



Statements of Comprehensive Income
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Statements of Changes in Equity
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Statements of Cash Flows
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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ROCKWELL 
P1 Councourse Level, 
The Power Plant Mall, 
Rockwell Center, Makati City 
898-1523 / 219-0114 
898-1522 (fax)

SALCEDO 
G/F, Aguirre Bldg., Tordesillas  
Cor. H.V. dela Costa Sts.,  
Salcedo Village, Makati City 
813-2220 / 813-2734 (telefax) 
	
Manila North Area
	
BANAWE	 
128-B, WAS Bldg., Banawe St., 
Quezon City  
711-9454 / 711-9456 / 711-9428

E. RODRIGUEZ 	
E. Rodriguez Sr. Ave. cor.  
84 Hemady St., Brgy. Mariana, 
New Manila, Quezon City 
705-1943 / 722-2197 / 722-2379

FAIRVIEW PETRON 
Petron Fairview 
Commonwealth Ave.,
Fairview, Quezon City 
3761023 / 219-0252
3761025 (Fax)

KAMUNING	
Tomas Morato Ave., cor.  
Dr. Lascano St., Kamuning
Quezon City 
922-7981 / 922-7982 
922-7998 (fax)

MALABON
29 Gov. Pascual Acacia Ave. 
Malabon City, Metro Manila 
291-0254 / 446-7385 /  
288-7571 (telefax)

MALABON-GEN. LUNA	
55 Gen. Luna St., San Agustin, 
Malabon City 
441-0977 / 332-5392 / 219-0235

QUEZON AVE.	
Sto. Domingo Church Compound 
8 Biak na Bato St. cor.  
Quezon Ave., Quezon City 
732-8360 / 712-2560  /712-2534
 
VALENZUELA 
Units 12 & 13 PureGold Price 
Club, Brgy. Dalandanan, McArthur 
Highway, Valenzuela City 
794-6058 / 794-6063 / 322-2260

Manila South Area
		
ALABANG	
Unit 6 El Molito II Bldg.,  
Madrigal Ave., Alabang, 
Muntlinlupa City 
850-8718 / 219-0121 /
850-1574 (fax)

METRO MANILA

Makati Area
	
AYALA 
G/F IAcademy Bldg.,
6764 Ayala Ave., Makati City  
891-3814 / 810-0651 / 
219-02-55 (fax)                

BEL-AIR PETRON	
Bel-Air Petron Square, 363 
Sen. Gil Puyat Ave. 
Bgy. Bel-Air, Makati City 
898-2309 / 219-0279 / 
896-7085 (telefax) 

BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY 
G/F, Kensington Place  
Burgos  Circle, Fort Bonifacio 
Taguig City 
856-1707 /  856-1707 / 
856-1696 (telefax)

BONIFACIO HIGH StREET
G/F Active Fun Bldg.,  
9th Ave Cor. 28th St.  
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 
779-8023 / 779-8024 (telefax) 

DELA COSTA-ALFARO 
G/F Don Chua Lamko Bldg. 
Dela Costa cor. Leviste St., 
Salcedo Village, Makati City 
840-2789 / 261-0762 / 
840-2719 (telefax)

DELA ROSA  
G/F 2129 King’s Court II Bldg.  
Dela Rosa St. Cor.  
Chino Roces Ave., Makati City 
831-7156 / 831-7155 (telefax) 

JUPITER	
64/66 Jupiter St., 
Brgy. Bel-Air, Makati City  
828-4397 / 869-8812 / 
219-0258 (fax)

MAKATI Ave - ZUELLIG
Unit 2, G/F Zuellig Bldg. 
Makati Ave. Cor.  
Paseo  de Roxas Ave  
and Sta. Potenciana St. 
Makati City 
961-7628 / 219-0127 / 
961-8364 (telefax)

PASAY ROAD 
Cedar Executive Bldg.,  
1006 A. Arnaiz Ave.,  
(Pasay Road) San Lorenzo 
Village, Makati City 
840-5612 / 840-5640 /  
576-5035 / 840-5640 (telefax)

PASONG TAMO EXT. 
OPVI Centre, 2295  
Pasong Tamo Extension, 
Makati City  
892-9700 / 219-0271 / 
817-9300 (telefax)

Metro Manila	           ATMs        BRANCHES

Caloocan	 5	 2
Las Pinas	 5	 1
Makati 	 13	 12
Malabon	 3	 2
Mandaluyong 	 10	 1
Manila	 21	 13
Marikina	 5	 2
Muntinlupa	 4	 1
Parañaque	 4	 3
Pasay	 7	 2
Pasig	 6	 3
Quezon City	 33	 15
San Juan	 1	 1
Taguig	 5	 2
Valenzuela	 3	 1

Luzon		
	
Albay	 2	 1
Bataan	 3	 1
Batangas	 7	 4
Benguet	 4	 1
Bulacan	 4	 2
Cagayan	 2	 1
Camarines Sur	 1	 1
Cavite	 4	 2
Ilocos Norte	 1	 1
Ilocos Sur	 4	 2
La Union	 5	 1
Laguna	 12	 3
Nueva Ecija	 1	 1
Oriental Mindoro	 1	 1
Palawan	 1	 1
Pampanga	 12	 3
Pangasinan	 7	 3
Quezon	 1	 1
Rizal	 6	 2
Tarlac	 1	 1
Zambales	 6	 3

Visayas	
	
Aklan	 3	 1
Bohol	 1	 1
Capiz	 1	 1
Cebu	 16	 7
Iloilo	 4	 3
Leyte	 2	 2
Negros Occidental	 6	 3
Negros Oriental	 1	 1

Mindanao

Agusan Del Norte	 4	 1
Bukidnon	 2	 1
Davao Del Sur	 5	 3
Misamis Oriental	 4	 2
South Cotabato	 2	 1
Zamboanga Del Sur	 3	 2

Total	 264	 125
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B.F. HOMES	
33 President’s Ave.,  
Brgy. BF Homes 
Parañaque City  
403-8941 / 219-0149 (telefax)

BICUTAN 
35 Doña Soledad Ave., 
Better Living Subd. 
Parañaque City 
(02) 219-0129 / 776-4146 
823-2321 (fax)

DASMARIÑAS, CAVITE
Veluz-Frances Plaza Bldg.,
Aguinaldo Highway, 
Dasmarinas, Cavite 
Manila line: (02) 529-8129 
(telefax) / 
Cavite line: (046) 416-2335  

LAS PIÑAS
Elena Bldg. Real St.,  
Alabang-Zapote Road  
Pamplona, Las Pinas City 
556-1507 / 556-1501 /
556-1500

MAGALLANES	
Ground floor, Tritan Plaza Bldg. 
Paseo de Magallanes, 
Makati City 
851-1424 / 219-0153 /
854-9611 (telefax)

NAIA	
NAIA Arrival Area Terminal 1, 
Pasay City  
877-1109 local 3782 /
853-0712 / 833-0713 (telefax)

NAIA 3 
Stall 14, Arrival Lobby 
NAIA Terminal 3 Complex 
Pasay City 
833-7295 / 833-7293 (telefax)

ROSARIO	
General Trias Drive  
Bgy. Poblacion, Rosario, Cavite  
(046) 402-2062 / (046) 438-8451 /
(046) 512-3218 (telefax)

SAN PEDRO	
Pacita Commercial Complex 
San Pedro, Laguna  
808-2026 / 808-2002 
808-3909 (fax)

SUCAT 
Fortuna II Bldg.  
8338 Dr. A. Santos  Ave.
Sucat, Parañaque City 
826-8415 / 219-0169 /
820-7747(fax)
	
Manila West Area
	
ADUANA 
G/F FEMII (Main) Bldg.A. 
Soriano St., Aduana 
Intramuros Manila 
527-2893 / 526-8959 /
219-0180 / 527-2947 (fax)

ERMITA 
1312 A. Mabini St. 
Ermita, Manila  
254-7549 / 254-7545 to 46 / 
219-0178 

PORT AREA 
G/F Mary Bachrach cor. 25th  
& A.C.  Delgado St. 
Port Area, Manila 
527-7989 / 527-7987 to 88 

RESORTS WORLD
G/F Resorts World Complex 
Newport City, Pasay City 
239-5860 / 239-5848 /
551-3520 to 21 / 521-9134 (fax)

ROXAS BLVD.	
Kanlaon Towers, Roxas Blvd. 
Pasay City  
851-2680 / 219-0185 /
854-4071 (fax)

TAFT Ave - LA SALLE 
G/F Endriga Bldg.
2270 Taft Ave., Malate 
523-2297 / 219-0194 /
521-9130

TAFT Ave - PADRE FAURA
Don Santiago Bldg. 
Taft Ave., Manila  
536-4959 / 536-4959 /
219-0199 /  526-6049 (fax)

UNITED NATIONS	
429 Victoria Bldg., 
United Nations Ave., 
Ermita, Manila 
526-0590 / 219-0226 /
521-8663 (fax)

Manila East Area
	
CAINTA	
40 Felix Ave., San Isidro
Cainta, Rizal  
682-8524 / 219-0214 / 682-6243 
(telefax) 

CONCEPCION 
A.M.PACLEB Bldg.
52 Bayan-Bayanan Ave. 
Concepcion, Markina City 
941-0714  / 219-0125 /
942-0429 (telefax)

EASTWOOD PETRON
188 E. Rodriguez Jr. Ave. 
(C-5), Bagumbayan 
Quezon City  
654-0084 / 211-9543 /
655-1204 (telefax) 

GREENHILLS
Eisenhower Tower
7 Eisenhower St., Greenhills, 
San Juan, Metro Manila 
723-5380 / 219-0207 /  
727-4936 to 39 / 721-0990

MAIN OFFICE-SAN MIGUEL
Unit A, G/F, San Miguel 
Properties Center, No. 7  
St. Francis St., Mandaluyong City 
635-5517 / 219-0213 /
0917-8351876 / 738-1984 / 
738-1985 (telefax)

MARCOS HI-WAY (Cainta)
Unit 10, Thaddeus Arcade 
Pitpitan cor. Gil Fernando Ave. 
San Roque, Marikina City 
641-7172 / 219-2723 / 
647-7165 (fax)

MARIKINA 
J.P. Rizal St., Sta. Elena 
Marikina City  
646-1808 / 219-3453 /
646-1802 (fax) 

PASIG	
Renaissance 2000 Tower 
Meralco Ave., Pasig City 
635-0392 / 219-0229 
635-3661 /  631-3769 (telefax)

PASIG BOULEVARD
152 Pasig Blvd.
Brgy. Bagong Ilog, Pasig City   
650- 6560 / 650-6561 (fax) 

WACK-WACK PETRON
553 Shaw Blvd.
Brgy. Wack-Wack
Mandaluyong City  
738-1984 / 219-0242 /
738-1984 / 738-1985 (telefax) / 
633-2430 (telefax)
	
Manila Central Area
	
CALOOCAN A. MABINI
102 A.Mabini St., Maypajo 
Caloocan City  
287-2344 / 287-4709 (fax)  

DASMARINAS-BINONDO 
STP Bldg., Dasmariñas St.  
cor. Marquina St. 
Binondo, Manila 
247-1472 / 247- 1473  

GRACE PARK 
G/F HGL Bldg., 554 Edsa cor.  
Biglang-Awa St., Caloocan City
361-1832 /  219-0126 /
361-0931(fax)

JUAN LUNA
465 Juan Luna St. 
Binondo, Manila  
241-0234 / 241-0407 (fax)  

QUIAPO 
609 Sales St., Quiapo, Manila  
733-9326 / 733-9366 (fax) 

SOLER 
1004 Reina Regente St. 
cor. Soler St. Binondo, Manila  
244-7003 / 219-0120 / 
244-7001 (tel/fax)

STO. CRISTO 
Kim Siu Ching Foundation Bldg., 
471-483 Sto. Cristo St.  
cor. Jaboneros St., 
Binondo, Manila 
241-4151 /  242-0842 (telefax) 

TUTUBAN 
Units M2-60 21 and  
22 Ground Center Mall
CM Recto Ave., Manila 
353-0086/ 254-0586 (fax)  
Quezon City Central Area
	
BROADCAST CITY	
Broadcast City Compound
Capitol Hills Diliman
Quezon City
932-4628 / 219-0188 / 
932- 4969 (Fax) 

COMMONWEALTH	
Upper G/F, DEMA Bldg. 
Lot 1, Block 1, Capitol State-II
Commonwealth Ave., 
Quezon City 
952-7990 / 216-7636 /
952-7989 (Fax)

CUBAO	
Unit 1, G/F Harvester Corporate Ctr., 
P. Tuazon cor. 7th & 8th Aves. 
Brgy. Socorro, Cubao
Quezon City 
911-2486 / 219-0202 /
911-2485 (Fax)

DEL MONTE	
Bank of Commerce Bldg., 
Del Monte Ave. cor.  
D. Tuazon St., Quezon City 
410-8025 / 219-3786 /
743-2541 (fax)

DILIMAN	
Commonwealth Ave. cor. 
Masaya St., Diliman, 
Quezon City 
927-6074 / 219-7093 /
920-2324 (Fax)

KATIPUNAN-PETRON 
Petron Katipunan Complex 
Katipunan Ave. Cor.  
Mangyan Road, La Vista
Quezon City 
921-4020 / 219-0174 /
921-4042 (Fax)

VISAYAS AVE. 
43 Visayas Ave. Brgy., Vasra 
Project 6, Quezon City 
426-4854 / 219-0155 /
426-4732 (Fax)

WEST Ave (Delta) 
11 West Ave cor.  
Zamboanga St., Quezon City  
374-5544 / 219-0168 /
374-5548 (Fax)

148 Forging Ahead

Bank of Commerce AR 2014 (   BOOK   ) - Rev20  FA Rev02.indd   148 6/24/15   9:26 PM



WEST TRIANGLE	
1451 Quezon Ave. Cor. 
Examiner St., Quezon City  
925-1209 / 219-0160 / 
927-4063 (fax)
	
LUZON

North Luzon Area
	
BAGUIO	
G/F, YMCA Baguio Bldg.,
Post Office Loop (Upper 
Session Road) , Baguio City 
(074) 619-0072 (telefax) /
(074) 619-0073  

BATAC 
C.F. Daguio Bldg.,  
Washington St., Brgy. 2 Ablan 
Batac City, Ilocos Norte 
(077) 617-1363 /
(077) 617-1603 (telefax)

CABANATUAN	
V.P. Bldg. Maharlika Highway 
Brgy. H. Concepcion, 
Cabanatuan City, Nueva Ecija 
(044) 940-1254  /
(044) 940-1263 (fax) 

CANDON	
National Highway
Bgy. San Jose,  Candon City 
Ilocos Sur  
(077) 674-0623 /
(077) 644-0288 (telefax)

CARMEN 
Mc Arthur Highway
Carmen Rosales, Pangasinan  
(075) 582-7365 /
(075) 582-7370 (fax) 

DAGUPAN
Eastgate Plaza Bldg., A.B. 
Fernandez East, Dagupan City, 
Pangasinan 
(075) 522-8691 /  
(075) 522-8693 (telefax) 

SAN FERNANDO-LA UNION
Northway Plaza
National Highway, Brgy. Sevilla  
San Fernando City, La Union
(072) 700-1618 /
(072) 242-5683 (telefax) 

TUGUEGARAO (Ilagan) 
27 Bonifacio Cor. 
Washington St.
Tuguegarao City, Cagayan 
(078) 844-8041 / 
(078) 844-8044 (telefax)

URDANETA  
The Pentagon Bldg.
McArthur Highway
Nancayasan, Urdaneta City 
Pangasinan 
(075) 656-1017 /
(075) 656-1018 (telefax)

TARLAC 
G/F, Rising Sun Bldg. 
Mc. Arthur Highway
San Nicolas, Tarlac City 
(045) 982-5401 /
(045) 982-5365 (telefax)
		
South Luzon Area

BATANGAS-CAEDO
Caedo Commercial Complex 
Calicanto, Batangas City 
(043) 723-1410 /
(043) 402-0231 /
(043) 723-6773 (telefax)

BATANGAS-P. BURGOS 
No. 27 P. Burgos St.
Batangas City  
(043) 723-0275 /
(043) 723-0279 /
(043) 723-0909 (telefax)

CALAMBA 
Units 6&7, New Parian 
Business Center, cor. 
Lawa Road, National Highway 
Parian, Calamba City 
(049) 502-7922 /
(049) 502-8508 (fax) 

CALAPAN	
Leona Yap Ong Bldg.,  
J.P. Rizal St., Calapan City 
Oriental Mindoro 
(043) 288-4496 /
(043) 288-4031 (telefax) 

LEGAZPI CITY	
G/F Diabetes One-Stop Center 
LANDCO Business Park 
Legazpi City 
(052) 742-0691 /
(052) 480-6054 

LIPA 
7 Bank of Commerce Bldg. 
C.M. Recto Ave Brgy. 9
Lipa City 
(043) 756-4214 /
(043) 756-2558 (telefax) 

LUCENA	
Quezon Ave cor. Lakandula St. 
Bgy. IX, Lucena City
(042) 710-9692 /
(042) 710-9693 /
(042) 710-9694 /

NAGA CITY	
Romar-I Bldg.,
Elias Angeles St., Naga City 
Manila Line: (02) 250-8093 / 
(telefax) / (054) 473-4080 / 
(054) 811-8931 

PUERTO PRINCESA 
WD Bldg., J. Rizal Ave.
Brgy. Manggahan
Puerto Princesa City, Palawan 
(048) 434-2171 / (048) 434-2172 
/ (048) 434-2170 (telefax)

STA ROSA 
Shop I-A G/F Paseo 3
Paseo de Sta. Rosa
Sta. Rosa City, Laguna 
(049) 541-1546 /
(049) 541- 1795 (telefax) 

TANAUAN 
Corachea Bldg.
J.P. Laurel Hi-way Cor. 
Molave St.,  Tanauan City, 
Batangas 
(043) 784-6907 / 
(043) 784-6994 /
(043) 784-6990 (telefax)
		
VISAYAS	
	
Eastern Visayas Area
	
CEBU-AYALA 
8990 Negros St.
Cebu Business Park, Cebu City  
(032) 415-5164 / (032) 316-9913
(032) 239-0674 (telefax)

CEBU-BANILAD 
G/F University of Cebu Bldg.
Gov. Cuenco Ave. (Banilad Rd.) 
6000 Cebu City 
(032 )231-6704 /
(032) 316-9921 /
(032) 231-6706 (telefax) 

CEBU-MAIN	
B.Rodriguez St. cor.
Osmeña Blvd., Cebu City  
(032) 253-1951 /
(032) 316-9912 /
(032) 255-4223 (fax) 

CEBU-PASIL 
Tupas St., Pasil, Cebu City 
(032) 261-1597 / 
(032) 316-9926 / 
(032) 261-1599 (telefax) 

CEBU STO. NIÑO 
MAGALLANES 
G/F, Unit 2, Martina Sugbo Bldg., 
P. Burgos Cor.  Magallanes St., 
Brgy. Sto. Niño, Cebu City 
(032) 254-1825 /
(032) 316-9925 /
(032) 253-3999 /
(032) 253-7708 (fax)

LAPU LAPU 
Units 3-5, AJS Bldg., Pusok 
Lapu-Lapu City 
(032) 341-3854 / 
(032) 316-9927 /
(032) 341-3855 (fax) 

MANDAUE 
Entienza Bldg.
National Hi-way 
Mandaue City, Cebu 
(032) 346-6901 /
032 (316-9262) /
(032) 346-6902 (telefax) 

VIGAN	
Plaza Maestro Commercial 
Complex, Jacinto Cor. 
Florentino St.,  
Vigan City, Ilocos Sur 
(077) 722-2119  
(077) 632-0802 (telefax)

Central Luzon Area

ANGELES	
McArthur Highway cor.  
B. Aquino St., Lourdes Sur 
East, Angeles City 
(045) 626-2010 (telefax) /
(045) 323-4130 (fax) 

BALANGA	
Paterno St. Poblacion
Balanga City, Bataan  
(047) 237-7622 / 
(047) 252-1857 /
(047) 237-2366 (telefax)

BALIBAGO
Mc Arthur Highway 
Cor. Victor St., Balibago 
Angeles City   
(045) 892-0875 / 
(045) 331-3389 /
(045) 625-5586 (telefax)

BALIUAG	
Victoria Bldg. Poblacion, 
Baliuag, Bulacan 
(044) 766-7701 /
(044) 766-2811 (telefax)

IBA, ZAMBALES	
TRB Bldg.
Ramon Magsaysay Ave.
Iba, Zambales
(047) 602-1866 /
(047) 811-1025 (fax)

MALOLOS 
Paseo del Congreso 
Malolos, Bulacan  
(044) 791-0342 /
(044) 791-2452 (telefax) 

SAN FERNANDO 
Insular Life Bldg.
Mc Arthur Hi-way
San Fernando, Pampanga 
(045) 961-1624 /
(045) 961-1680 (fax) 

STA. CRUZ, ZAMBALES 
National Road cor. Misola St. 
Poblacion South, 
Sta.Cruz, Zambales 
(047) 831-1803 / 
(047) 831-1113 (telefax)

SUBIC FREEPORT	
Bay Promenade Bldg., 
Sampson St., cor. Schley Road 
Subic Freeport Zone  
(047) 252-1851 /
(047) 252-1854 / 
(047) 252-1863 (telefax)
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ORMOC 
H. Serafica Bldg., Real St. 
Ormoc City  
(053) 561-8523 / 
(053) 255-4366 (telefax) 

TAGBILARAN	
G/F CAP Bldg.
CPG North Ave, Tagbilaran City  
(038) 411-5400 /
(038) 411-3773 (telefax) 

Western Visayas Area
	
BACOLOD-ARANETA 
(Luzurriaga) 
Yusay Arcade, Araneta St. 
Bacolod City  
(034) 433-4667 /
(034) 433-2267 (telefax) 

BACOLOD-LACSON 
(Bacolod)	
12th St. Cor. Lacson St.
Bacolod City  
(034) 433-4238 /
(034) 433-1139 (telefax)
 
DUMAGUETE 
CAP Bldg., Rizal Ave. 
Poblacion, Dumaguete City  
(035) 225-7668 /
(035) 422-6896 (fax) 

ESTANCIA 
Clement St., Estancia, Iloilo 
(033) 397-0222 /
(033) 397-0220 (fax) 

ILOILO-IZNART 
TCT Bldg., Iznart St., Iloilo City   
(033) 335-0710 / 
(033) 335-0712 

ILOILO-J.M. BASA	
G/F TTW Bldg., J.M. Basa 
& Mapa Sts., Iloilo City  
(033) 337-8721 /  
(033) 335-1020 (telefax) 

KABANKALAN 
Guanzon St., Kabankalan City 
Negros Occidental  
(034) 471-2853 /
(034) 471-2253 (fax) 

KALIBO	
1280 Garcia Bldg. C, 
Laserna St. Kalibo, Aklan  
(036) 262-5294 /
(036) 268-9032 (telefax) 

ROXAS CITY 
Gaisano Arcade, Arnaldo Blvd. 
Roxas City, Capiz  
(036) 621-0845 / 
(036) 621-1760 (fax) 

MINDANAO	
	
BUTUAN 
G/F, Cesia Bldg., Montilla Blvd. 
Butuan City, Agusan del Norte 
(085) 342-9320 (085) 342-9321 
/ (085) 342-9321/ 
(085) 342-6248 (Fax)

CAGAYAN DE ORO-LAPASAN
Suites 6 & 7, Gateway Tower 1, 
Limketkai Center, 
Cagayan de Oro City 
(088) 856-3991 /
(088) 856-3977 (telefax)  

CAGAYAN DE ORO-VELEZ    
Don A. Velez-Akut Sts.
Cagayan de Oro City  
(08822) 726-880 / 
(088) 856-4371 (telefax)
 
DAVAO-CITY HALL 
Valgoson’s Realty Bldg., City 
Hall Drive, Davao City  
(082) 226-4074 /
(082) 226-4075 (telefax)
 
DAVAO-LANANG 
Consuelo Bldg., KM. 07 
Brgy. San Antonio Agdao 
District, Lanang, Davao City 
(082) 234-1042 /
(082 )234-1042 /
(082) 226-2859 (telefax)

DAVAO- RIZAL 
CAP Dev’t Center Bldg. 
Rizal St., Davao City  
(082) 226-2223 /
(082) 222-0904 (telefax) 

GENERAL SANTOS 
G/F, Sunshine Hardware Bldg.
Santiago Blvd., General Santos City  
(083) 552-9375 /
(083) 552-5236 (telefax) 

MARAMAG
TRB Bldg., Sayre Highway, Poblacion 
Maramag, Bukidnon 
(088) 238-5253 /
(088) 238-5252 (telefax) 

ZAMBOANGA-M. JALDON 
Grand Astoria Hotel Bldg.
Mayor Jaldon St., Zamboanga City 
(062) 991-0720 /
(062) 991-2321 (telefax)  

ZAMBOANGA-VETERANS
Veterans Ave. Cor. Camanchile St. 
Zamboanga City  
(062) 991-2381 /
(062) 991-2980 (telefax)  
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Jose T. Pardo 
Chairman of the Board 
Office of the Chairman

Roberto C. Benares 
President & CEO
Office of the President/ CEO

Executive vice 
presidents

Angelica H. Lavares 
Group Head 
Strategic Support Group

Carmelita R. Araneta 
Group Head 
Operations Group

Emmanuel G. Herbosa 
Group Head 
Branch Banking Group

Felipe Martin F. Timbol 
Group Head 
Treasury Management Group

Senior Vice Presidents

Alfonso  T.  Garcia, Jr. 
Division Head 
BBG-VisMin Division

Anna Marie A. Cruz 
Division Head 
Product Development, 
Marketing Services and 
Credit Cards Division

Edel Mary D. Vegamora 
CFO and Controller 
Finance & Controllership 
Group

Edward Dennis J. 
Zshornack 
Chief Risk Officer 
Risk Management Division

Joseph C. Justiniano 
Group Head 
Consumer Group

Ma. Elena S. Sarmiento 
Chief Trust Officer 
Trust Services Division

Mary Mildred A. Bernardo 
Group Head 
Credit Group

Maximo V. Estrada 
Division Head 
Asset Management  
& Recovery Division

Paul John T. Reyes 
Division Head 
TMG-Fixed Income Trading 
Division

Phebe F. Cabildo 
Division Head 
BBG-North Division

Reginald C. Nery 
Chief Audit Executive 
Internal Audit Division

Ricardo A. Coreces 
Group Head 
Corporate Banking Group

Teresita S. Galvadores 
Division Head 
OG-Centralized Operations 
Support Division

Victor  C. Arboleda 
Chief Compliance Officer 
Compliance Division

Violeta M. Tirol 
Division Head 
BBG-South Division

FIRST VICE PRESIDENTS

Alfredo J. Bautista 
Division Head 
StSG-Business Systems 
Division

Alfredo L. Ayson 
Division Head 
OG-International Operations 
Division

Antonio Basilio C. De 
Guzman 
Division Head 
TMG-Product Engineering, 
Structures & Investments 
Division 

Aristeo S. Maralit 
Division Head 
OG-Electronic Banking & 
Card Support Division

Aurora C. Manguerra 
Division Head 
Corporate Planning Division 
Concurrent Head
TMG-Financial Institutions

Bernadette C. Basobas 
Area Head 
BBG-ND-Quezon City 
Central Area

Bernardo G. Talimban, Jr. 
Chief Information Officer 
OG-Information & Tech. 
Services Division

Celestino C. Mendiola 
Division Head 
BBG-Branch System  
and Process Division

Danielyn P. Casaul 
Division Head 
CBG-Commercial Banking I 
Division

Edwin T. Amahan 
Division Head 
BBG-Branch Operations 
Division

Jay S .Velasco 
Division Head 
OG-Loans Operations 
Division

Jovencio R. Navarro, Jr. 
Area Head 
BBG-SD-Metro Manila South 
Area

Louella P. Ira 
Division Head 
StSG-Legal Services Division

Ma. Eleanor Christina S. 
Castañeda 
Division Head 
CoG-Consumer Loans 
Division

Ma. Teresa L. Zamora 
Division Head 
TMG-Treasury Marketing  
& Sales Division

Marieta Bernadette A. 
Sevilla 
Division Head 
CBG-Commercial Banking II 
Division

Monette G. De Leon 
Division Head 
TMG-Liquidity & Asset 
Liability Management 
Division

Numeriano Manuel V. 
Amparo 
Division Head 
CBG-Cash Management 
Division

Vice Presidents

Alejandro Antonio B. Gaerlan 
Division Head 
TMG-Foreign Exchange 
Trading Division

Annalyn D. Delos Santos 
Area Head 
BBG-ND-Manila Central Area

Arturo Gerard T. Medrano III 
Department Head 
AMRD-Acquired Assets 
Management Department

Chona C. Lacson 
Area Head 
BBG-SD-Metro Manila East Area

Corazon T. Llagas 
Department Head 
StSG-LSD-Litigation Department

Georgina M. Borcelis 
Area Head 
BBG-ND-Metro Manila 
North Area

Girlie Isabel D. Umali 
Department Head 
AMRD-Remedial Management 
Department

Helen D. Paciencia 
Project Manager 
OG-ITSD-PDM-Project 
Management Office

Jeremy H. Reyes 
Department Head 
IAD-Quality Assurance Review 
Department

Jocelyn Isabel S. Legaspi 
Department Head 
StSG-LSD-Documentation 
Department

Jose Mari M. Zerna 
Department Head 
RMD-Credit Risk Management 
Department

Lucibar T. Perocho 
Area Head 
BBG-SD-Manila West Area

Maria Ana P. Dela Paz 
Division Head 
CG-Credit Evaluation and Review 
Division

Maria Carmen F. Aquino 
Division Head 
StSG-Human Resource 
Management & Development 
Division

Maria Leticia D.G. Madridejos 
Officer-In-Charge 
CBG-Corporate Division 
Concurrent Special Assistant  
to the President
Office of the President/CEO

Marie Antoinette L. Dela Cruz 
Division Head 
OG-Treasury Operations Division

Morena V. Abadilla 
Division Head 
BBG-BOD-Branch Operations 
Quality Center

SENIOR OFFICERS
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Noel R. Godoy 
Division Head 
CG-Consumer Credit Division

ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENTS

Aiveth D. Yuseco 
Department Head 
CBG-CMD-Cash Management 
Products Department

Alfredo T. San Juan, Jr.
Department Head 
CoG-CLD-Auto Loans 
Department

Alma A. Malabanan 
Department Head 
CBG-Commercial Banking II 
Division-Program Lending

Amalia Q. Belarmino 
Head 
Investment & Portfolio 
Management Department
Concurrent Officer-In-Charge 
Business Development 
& Account Management 
Department 

Andrew D. Cajucom 
Department Head 
PDMSD-Credit Card Unit

Arlyn C. Valero 
Division Head 
StSG-General Services Division

Aurora R. Del Rosario 
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-QCCA-West Triangle 
Branch

Baldwin V. Villena 
Department Head 
StSG-HRMDD-Compensation  
& Benefits Administration Dept.

Belen T. Ramos 
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-MCA-Soler Branch

Camilla Genevieve A. Rimando 
Department Head 
PDMSD-Alternative Channels 
Department

Cecilia A. Rentoy 
Quality Assurance Officer 
BBG-BOD-Branch Operations 
Quality Center (VisMin Division)

Concesa N. Veneracion 
Division Head 
FCG-General Accounting  
and Systems Control Division

Cristina T. Ang Dy Pay
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-QCCA-Del Monte 
Branch

Dino Joseph A. Ramirez 
Department Head 
TMG-FITD-Credit Trading / 
ROP Department

Don M. San Juan 
Area Operations Officer 
BBG-BOD-BOCC 
(Northern Luzon)

Emerline C. Cardenas 
Area Head 
BBG-ND-North Luzon Area

Ernest Exequiel P. Abanto 
Department Head 
CoG-CLD-Housing Loans 
Dept.

Ester S. Maraat 
Area Operations Officer 
BBG-BOD-BOCC (VisMin II)

Francisco Raymund P. 
Gonzales 
Department Head 
PDMSD-Product 
Development Department

George E. Consul 
Area Head 
BBG-SD-South Luzon Area

Jacqueline A. Domingo 
Division Head 
BBG-BOD-Branch Operations 
Control Center

Januario G. Caringal 
Chief Security Officer 
Security Department

Joanne A. Del Rosario 
Department Head 
StSG-BSD-Credit Policy 
Department

Joey R. Laqueo 
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-MMNA-Malabon II 
Branch

Kelwin S. Salvador 
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-MCA-Grace Park 
Branch

Leah Antoinette C. Cruz 
Department Head 
StSG-HRMDD-Learning  
& Development, Employee 
& Labor Relations

Leilani G. Bañes 
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MA-Pasay Road Branch

Liberty A. Balgemino 
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MMEA-Main Office  
(San Miguel) Branch

Lolita B. Carlos
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MA-Dela Costa Alfaro 
Branch

Lourdes V. Arriola 
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-MMNA-Malabon I 
Branch

Lucia I. Tolentino 
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-SLA-Calapan Branch

Ma. Clariza M. Ang 
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MA-Ayala Branch

Ma. Consuelo M. Tan 
Area Head 
BBG-VMD-Mindanao Area

Ma. Isabel D. Lipana 
Area Head 
BBG-ND-Central Luzon Area

Ma. Theresa P. Ramilo 
Department Head 
OG-ITSD-PDM-Applications 
Management

Ma. Theresa G. Soriano 
Area Head 
BBG-SD-Makati Area

Manolo B. Kimpo, Jr. 
Department Head 
TMG-LALM-Domestic Fund 
Management Department

Marie Kristin G. Mayo 
Department Head 
StSG-HRMDD-Recruitment 
and Employee Information 
Department

Marilou T. Guevara 
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MMEA-Main Office 
(San Miguel) Branch

Marion A. Pineda 
Branch Head 
BBG-ND-QCCA-Commonwealth 
Branch

Marlene P. Ignacio 
Department Head 
CBG-Commercial Banking 
II Division-Small Medium 
Enterprise

Marlo D. Montelibano 
Area Head 
BBG-VMD-Western Visayas 
Area

Medallon R. Abrena 
Department Head 
StSG-BSD-Methods  
& Standards Department

Orlando M. Bibares 
Department Head 
OG-LOD-Loans Operations 
Department

Patricia M. Onda 
Account Officer 
AMRD-AAMD-Sales  
& Marketing Section

Paulyn V. Bernabe 
Department Head 
TMG-TMSD-Retail-Branches 
Department

Peter M. Co 
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MA-Pasong Tamo 
Ext. Branch

Rafael Lito D. Carbonell 
Area Head 
BBG-VMD-Eastern Visayas 
Area

Rizaldy D. Tolentino 
Department Head 
CBG-Commercial Banking I 
Division-Metro Manila/Luzon

Romil D. Langones 
Department Head 
CBG-Commercial Banking I 
Division-Visayas/Mindanao

Sheilah R. Apostol 
AML Compliance Officer 
CD-AML Management 
Department

Teodoro Q. Donato III
Branch Head 
BBG-SD-MA-Zuellig Branch

Wilma L. Daliva 
Division Head 
CG-Credit Administration 
Division
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Anti-Money Laundering 
Committee

Victor C. Arboleda, Chairman
Carmelita R. Araneta, Member
Phebe F. Cabildo, Member
Edwin T. Amahan, Member
Ma. Teresa L. Zamora, Member
Corazon T. Llagas, Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Sheilah R. Apostol, Secretariat

Asset Liability Management 
Committee

Roberto C. Benares, Chairman
Felipe Martin F. Timbol, Vice Chairman
Ricardo A. Coreces, Member
Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Member
Aurora C. Manguerra, Member
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Adviser
Ma. Elena S. Sarmiento, Adviser
Monette G. De Leon, Secretariat

Bids and Awards Committee

Mary Mildred A. Bernardo, Chairman
Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Carmelita R. Araneta, Member
Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Member
Ma. Ana P. dela Paz, Secretariat

Business Continuity 
Management Committee 
(Crisis Management Team)

Roberto C. Benares, Chairman
Carmelita R. Araneta, Vice Chairman
Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Member
Joseph C. Justiniano, Member
Ricardo A. Coreces, Member
Mary Mildred A. Bernardo, Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Felipe Martin F. Timbol, Member
Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Member
Victor C. Arboleda, Member
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Member
Reginald C. Nery, Member

Business Continuity 
Management Committee 
(BCP Team)

Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Chairman
Angelica H. Lavares, Vice Chairman
Edwin T. Amahan, Member
Teresita S. Galvadores, Member
Ma. Eleanor Christina S. Castaneda, Member
Andrew D. Cajucom, Member

Management Committees

Aristeo S. Maralit, Member
Paul John T. Reyes, Member
Concesa N. Veneracion, Member
Prince Geoff B. Santos, Member
Maria Carmen F. Aquino, Member
Joel O. Longalong, Member
Rommelwin M. Ardidon, Member
Bernie G. Talimban Jr., Member
Jay S. Velasco, Member
Anna Marie A. Cruz, Member
Roderick M. Martinez, Secretariat

CLEAHR (Compliance, Legal, 
Internal Audit, Human Resources) 
Committee

Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Chairman
Reginald C. Nery, Member
Victor C. Arboleda, Member
Louella P. Ira, Member
Ma. Carmen F. Aquino, Member
Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Member
Alvin A. Alcantara, Secretariat

Committee on Disciplinary Action

Maria Carmen F. Aquino, Chairman
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Violeta M. Tirol, Member
Teresita S. Galvadores, Member
Alfredo J. Bautista, Member
Louella P. Ira, Member
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Member
Anna-Lyn R. Tarrayo, Secretariat
Jocelyn V. Raymundo, Secretariat

Credit & Collection Committee

Roberto C. Benares, Chairperson
Mary Mildred A. Bernardo, Vice Chairperson
Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Member
Joseph C. Justiniano, Member
Ricardo A. Coreces, Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Felipe Martin F. Timbol, Member
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Adviser / Observer
Jose Mari M. Zerna, Adviser / Observer
Jocelyn Isabel S. Legaspi, Adviser / Observer
Ma. Ana P. dela Paz, Adviser / Observer
Joanne A Del Rosario, Secretariat

Information Technology 
Steering Committee

Roberto C. Benares, Chairman
Carmelita R. Araneta, Vice Chairman
Bernie G. Talimban Jr., Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Member
Joseph C. Justiniano, Member

Ricardo A. Coreces, Member
Felipe Martin F. Timbol, Member
Mary Mildred A. Bernardo, Member
Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Member
Anna Marie A. Cruz, Member
Aurora C. Manguerra, Member
Ramon A. Dela Llana, Member
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Adviser
Victor C. Arboleda, Adviser
Reginald C. Nery, Adviser
Erma D. Pagkatipunan, Secretariat
Ma. Theresa P. Ramilo, Secretariat

Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process Committee

Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Chairman
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Vice Chairman
Victor C. Arboleda, Member
Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Member
Ricardo A. Coreces, Member
Joseph C. Justiniano, Member
Carmelita R. Araneta, Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Felipe Martin F. Timbol, Member
Aurora C. Manguerra, Member
John M. Iledan, Secretariat

Operations and Policies Committee

Carmelita R. Araneta, Chairman
Celestino C. Mendiola, Vice Chairman
Teresita S. Galvadores, Member
Edwin T. Amahan, Member
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Member
Bernie G. Talimban Jr., Member
Alfredo J. Bautista, Member
Anna Marie A. Cruz, Member
Edel Mary D. Vegamora, Member
Louella P. Ira, Member
Victor C. Arboleda, Adviser
Reginald C. Nery, Adviser
Jay S. Velasco, Secretariat

 
Security Committee

Roberto C. Benares, Chairman
Carmelita R. Araneta, Alternate
Januario G. Caringal, Member
Angelica H. Lavares, Member
Louella P. Ira, Member
Emmanuel G. Herbosa, Member
Maximo V. Estrada, Member
Arlyn C. Valero, Member
Edwin T. Amahan, Member
Reginald C. Nery, Adviser
Edward Dennis J. Zshornack, Adviser
Victor C. Arboleda, Adviser
Bernie G. Talimban Jr., Adviser
Alexander F. Lim, Secretariat
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